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          1  LANDMARKS, PUBLIC SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Welcome to the

          3  Land Use Subcommittee on Landmarks, Public Siting

          4  and Maritime Uses. My name is Jessica Lappin. I am

          5  Chair. We are joined today by members of the

          6  Committee, Council Member Jimmy Oddo, from Staten

          7  Island, our Minority Leader, Council Member Maria

          8  del Carmen Arroyo from the Bronx, Council Member

          9  Leroy Comrie from Queens, Council Member Tony Avella

         10  from Queens, Council Member Gale Brewer of

         11  Manhattan, Council Member Charles Barron of Brooklyn

         12  and Council Member Alan Gerson of Manhattan.

         13                 The first item on the agenda today is

         14  the Beacon school which is located in Council Member

         15  Brewer's district. It's item No. 20075369. We have

         16  the School Construction Authority here today,

         17  Gregory Shaw and Linda Corcoran to testify for the

         18  Administration.

         19                 Please, Mr. Shaw, begin whenever

         20  you're ready.

         21                 MR. SHAW: Thank you. Good morning,

         22  Chairperson Lappin and Council Members. Thanks so

         23  much for having us today. The New York City School

         24  Construction Authority -- excuse me. My name is

         25  Gregory Shaw, I'm the principal attorney for real
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          2  estate for the School Construction Authority, and to

          3  my immediate right is Linda Corcoran, who is

          4  Director of Real Estate for the Department of

          5  Education in the School Construction Authority.

          6                 The New York City School Construction

          7  Authority has undertaken the site acquisition

          8  process for the Beacon school, Beacon High School,

          9  an existing facility with 1,000 students located on

         10  the north side of West 61st Street, between

         11  Amsterdam and West End Avenues and Tax Block 1154,

         12  Lot 108, in the Borough of Manhattan.

         13                 The school is also located in

         14  Community School District No. 3 and Manhattan

         15  Community Board No. 7. The proposed site contains a

         16  total of approximately 22,500 square feet of lot

         17  area, the site is privately owned and improved with

         18  a three-story plus basement building which contains

         19  approximately 70,000 square feet of floor area. The

         20  entire building is currently occupied by the New

         21  York City's Department of Education's Beacon High

         22  School on their lease, which is scheduled to expire

         23  in 2010. If the lease is allowed to expire, this

         24  facility would be closed.

         25                 Suitable alternative sites are not
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          2  available in the immediate vicinity and the Beacon

          3  students cannot be accommodated in other existing

          4  DOE facilities, due to our overcrowding throughout

          5  New York City High Schools.

          6                 Under the proposed plan, the SCA

          7  would acquire the property from its current owner,

          8  for Beacon High School's continued and long-term use

          9  in occupancy.

         10                 The notice of filing for the site

         11  plan was published in the New York Post, in City

         12  Record on April 2nd, 2007, Manhattan Community Board

         13  No. 7 was also notified of the site plan on April

         14  2nd, 2007 and was asked to hold a public hearing.

         15                 Community Board No. 7 held its

         16  hearing on the site plan on April 18th, 2007 and

         17  subsequently sent written comments in support of the

         18  proposed site plan. The City Planning Commission was

         19  also notified of the site plan on April 2nd and it

         20  also recommended in favor of the site.

         21                 The SCA has determined that the

         22  proposed acquisition qualifies as a type 2 action

         23  under the State Environmental Quality Review Act for

         24  which no further environmental review is required.

         25  The building is located in R8 zoning district, in
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          2  which educational uses are allowed. The SCA has

          3  considered all comments received on the proposed

          4  site plan and affirms the site plan pursuant to

          5  Section 1731 of the Public Authorities Law.

          6                 In accordance with Section 1732 of

          7  the Public Authorities Law, the SCA submitted the

          8  proposed site plan to the Mayor and Council on May

          9  10th, 2007. We look forward to your Subcommittee's

         10  favorable consideration of the site plan. We're

         11  prepared to answer any questions that the Committee

         12  or you might have.

         13                 Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you.

         15                 So, the Department of Education took

         16  over the site in 1994/'95; is that correct?

         17                 MR. SHAW: That's correct.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: And at that time,

         19  how long was it -- did you sign one lease, or have

         20  you signed a lease extension since then?

         21                 MS. CORCORAN: We had a lease that is

         22  running for 15 years, and we know it's about to

         23  expire in 2010. And we had renovated the building at

         24  that time using City capital money.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: How many students
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          2  attend the high school?

          3                 MS. CORCORAN: A little bit over 1,000

          4  at the moment. It was built out for a capacity of

          5  850.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: And is it a

          7  high-performing high school?

          8                 MR. SHAW: Absolutely.

          9                 MS. CORCORAN: It's a very popular

         10  school.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: How do kids gain

         12  admission to this school?

         13                 MS. CORCORAN: It's not a specialized

         14  school. It's just regular admissions process where

         15  you list your preferences and this is the preference

         16  of very many.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: So, the

         18  Department of Education is now permanently acquiring

         19  the land; is that correct?

         20                 MS. CORCORAN: Yes. We've determined

         21  that this is a very good site for a school really.

         22  It's been operating for years. We've put money in to

         23  make it a school. We went through an extensive

         24  process looking for other appropriate buildings to

         25  convert or sites within District 3, and we have not
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          2  found anything that is anywhere near as good as this

          3  existing site.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: How much money

          5  are we paying to acquire the site?

          6                 MR. SHAW: That's not yet been

          7  determined. We're in negotiations with the owner.

          8  The owner is looking for substantially more than we

          9  may be willing to pay, and so we have ongoing

         10  discussions, shall we say.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Council Member

         12  Brewer, since this is in your district, and I know

         13  that the community board voted unanimously in

         14  support of this, and you're in support of it.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Thank you,

         16  Madam Chair. A big thanks to School Construction

         17  Authority and certainly to the principal, parents,

         18  this is the end of a long process. I strongly urge

         19  the Committee and the Council to vote in support. I

         20  won't bore you with the thousands of meetings on

         21  this topic, but we made sure, there is no other

         22  location in the world for the Beacon, except for

         23  West 61st Street. And, so, we're delighted that

         24  everybody has now figured that out, and we

         25  definitely thank School Construction Authority. And,
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          2  you know, we appreciate very much the negotiations

          3  that you've been engaged in, and I know it's been

          4  challenging, but the conclusion is correct, and we

          5  look forward to even enhancing and building upon

          6  this school and know that in the end it will stay

          7  where it is and we'll look forward to renovation

          8  even further.

          9                 Thank you very much. This is a very

         10  exciting proposal. Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you.

         12                 Council Member Arroyo.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER DEL CARMEN ARROYO: So,

         14  what happens if you're not successful with your

         15  negotiations on the purchase?

         16                 MR. SHAW: We'll have to acquire it by

         17  eminent domain.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER DEL CARMEN ARROYO:

         19  Okay, thank you.

         20                 MR. SHAW: You're welcome.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Any of my other

         22  colleagues have questions?

         23                 Council Member Comrie.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: So, you said

         25  that you're prepared to take it to the eminent
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          2  domain level because of the fact that you need this

          3  space?

          4                 MR. SHAW: Yes. If negotiations are

          5  unsuccessful with the owner, yes.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: And is there a

          7  period of time for a negotiation on this? Or that's

          8  still to be determined?

          9                 MR. SHAW: It's still to be

         10  determined. We have ongoing discussions with the

         11  owner. He's recently put forth a proposal. Actually

         12  this started because they were indicating to us

         13  initially that they were going to extend the lease,

         14  and so we moved into the acquisition mode, because

         15  there is nowhere else to put these students.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Right.

         17                 MR. SHAW: The owner, I might add, is

         18  a new owner. They purchased this building with a

         19  lease in place.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay.

         21                 MR. SHAW: So they were well aware. We

         22  occupy the entire school, so this was not an owner

         23  who was not unaware of what the uses of the building

         24  were, and the fact, as a matter of fact, this

         25  particular owner owns a number of other buildings

                                                            12

          1  LANDMARKS, PUBLIC SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2  where we're leasing school space from them.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay. So, this

          4  owner came into possession of this property after

          5  this lease had been already in place?

          6                 MR. SHAW: Correct.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: And knew that

          8  the lease was in place.

          9                 MR. SHAW: Correct.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: With an option

         11  to buy at the end of it. Was there an option to buy

         12  --

         13                 MR. SHAW: No. No, there is no option.

         14  We have no option to purchase this building, no. No,

         15  we do not.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay. The

         17  building requires no modernization at this

         18  particular time?

         19                 MS. CORCORAN: Not at this particular

         20  time, but that's also an issue with having the lease

         21  expiring in 2010. We can't spend any capital money

         22  in the building if there's only a few years left in

         23  the lease. So, that's another argument of why we

         24  want it to be in our portfolio of permanent

         25  structures.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay, thank

          3  you. Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you.

          5                 And I can say as a Manhattan Council

          6  Member, I think acquiring space, as opposed to

          7  leasing it is the better option for the long-term

          8  because real estate in Manhattan is so expensive, it

          9  becomes very difficult to site schools because the

         10  Department always says they can't afford to purchase

         11  properties.

         12                 We've been joined by Council Member

         13  Annabel Palma.

         14                 Thank you very much.

         15                 MR. SHAW: Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: We have one more

         17  pane to testify on this item. Jeanne Kerwin, Lisa

         18  Johnson-Mifflin and Tatiana Hoover, who are all here

         19  to speak in favor.

         20                 MS. KERWIN: Good morning. Can you

         21  hear us?

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: If you could just

         23  introduce yourselves for the record.

         24                 MS. KERWIN: Oh, I'm sorry. My name is

         25  Jeanne Kerwin. I'm a parent of two children now
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          2  actually at Beacon High School.

          3                 MS. JOHNSON-MIFFLIN: My name is Lisa

          4  Mifflin. I'm a parent at Beacon. I have a daughter,

          5  upcoming sophomore, and I have a son applying next

          6  year, and I will be the Vice President of the Parent

          7  Association of Beacon High School next year.

          8                 MS. HOOVER: Tatiana Hoover. I have

          9  three sons, two of which -- one of which is

         10  graduating this year, I have one son who will still

         11  be there, and the other graduated from Beacon. And

         12  when Ms. Brewer says that we have been doing this a

         13  long time. It hasn't been thousands of meetings, I

         14  think it's close to like a million meetings. Thank

         15  you so much for having us and giving us the

         16  opportunity to say that we really support this, and

         17  there is nothing worse than not knowing your future.

         18  And we have been at this place for a very long time.

         19  So, as parents we really want to finalize this and

         20  to know that Beacon will have a home for years and

         21  years to come.

         22                 MS. KERWIN: I want to thank Gale

         23  Brewer for literally canvassing the Upper West Side

         24  the last two or three years, thinking that we needed

         25  to possibly find a new place for ourselves and
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          2  obviously realizing that there was no other place.

          3                 As you all know, as we live in the

          4  neighborhood and watch these 40-story condominiums

          5  being put up every day on every block, it became

          6  obvious to us that people aren't building schools,

          7  but they're building a lot more residences in our

          8  neighborhood, so I think it's really important that

          9  we're able to keep this building.

         10                 And hopefully, as Gale says in the

         11  future, expand. Because I know my daughter applied

         12  this year. I think 250,000 children for 250 seats.

         13  So, this is an extremely popular school. Very

         14  high-performing school, and I think that we need to

         15  really cherish it and do everything we can to keep

         16  it where it is and on its mission.

         17                 MS. MIFFLIN: And I'd also just like

         18  to add that I'm proud to be in unison with Council

         19  Member Brewer and the SCA. After ten years of parent

         20  involvement, I think we all realize, parents and

         21  SCA, that there is a horrible overcrowding issue so

         22  far as schools in New York City. So we're so proud

         23  that we're all on the same page. We're not looking

         24  for another space, we're asking to stay where we

         25  are. It's been successful for us. It's been our
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          2  home. And you know, we are one of the most

          3  sought-after schools, high schools in New York City,

          4  and our kids are enriched by the area that they're

          5  in, having the museum and so many resources at their

          6  fingertips. And I look forward to my daughter

          7  graduating from there, and hopefully my son, after

          8  the class of 2010. So, so far as the parents are

          9  concerned, we are willing to see this out through

         10  the end and we're just happy to be on the same page

         11  and not be looking for another space or being asked

         12  to find another space for our school.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you very

         14  much.

         15                 Do any of my colleagues have

         16  questions? Okay, thank you very much for taking the

         17  time to come testify.

         18                 MS. KERWIN: Thank you.

         19                 MS. MIFFLIN: Thank you.

         20                 MS. HOOVER: Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Seeing nobody

         22  else here to testify on this item, this hearing is

         23  closed.

         24                 And I would like to open the hearing

         25  on the amendment to the Douglaston Hill Historic
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          2  District, which is in Council Member Tony Avella's

          3  district, in Queens, Land Use Item No. 475, and ask

          4  Diane Jackier from the Landmarks Commission to

          5  testify for the Administration.

          6                 And while Diane is getting settled, I

          7  would let my colleagues know that we're going to lay

          8  over 23 and 25 Park Place, which are items number

          9  464 and 465.

         10                 MS. JACKIER: Good morning, Council

         11  members. My name is Diane Jackier. I'm also joined

         12  here by Mark Silberman, the Landmarks Commission's

         13  General Counsel.  I'm the Director of External

         14  Affairs for the Landmarks Preservation Commission,

         15  and I'm here today to testify on the Commission's

         16  redesignation of 41-45 240th Street in the

         17  Douglaston Hill Historic District.

         18                 On March 13th, 2007, the Landmarks

         19  Commission held a public hearing on the proposed

         20  redesignation of the building.

         21                 Thirteen people spoke in favor,

         22  including representatives of the Douglaston

         23  Littleneck Historical Society, the Neighborhood

         24  Preservation Alliance, Queens Community Board 11,

         25  the Historic Districts Council and the Landmarks
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          2  Conservancy.

          3                 Three people including the owners of

          4  the building spoke in opposition. The Commission

          5  also received letters in favor of redesignation from

          6  Council Member Tony Avella and the Municipal Arts

          7  Society. In addition, the Commission received

          8  petitions against redesignation of the building.

          9                 On April 3rd, 2007, the Commission

         10  voted to redesignation, 41-45 240th Street as part

         11  of the Douglaston Hill Historic District.

         12                 The building known as 41-45 240th

         13  Street was designated as part of the Douglaston Hill

         14  Historic District on December 14th, 2004.

         15                 Subsequent to designation, the owner

         16  of the property, who acquired the property after the

         17  Landmarks Commission's public hearing and before

         18  designation, commenced a legal action, challenging

         19  inclusion of his house in the district on the

         20  grounds that the description of his house in the

         21  designation report was inaccurate.

         22                 Specifically the owner claimed that

         23  the house dated from the 1920s was not, as written

         24  in the designation report, an altered mid-nineteenth

         25  century house. In a decision dated December 7th,
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          2  2005, Justice Feinman ruled that the Commission

          3  should have a new public hearing to consider the

          4  information submitted by the owner, and vacated the

          5  designation of the house.

          6                 The Borough of Queens Tax Assessment

          7  records which commence in 1990, confirm that a

          8  two-story house was occupying the lot in 1900. And

          9  the 1909 Bromley map shows the existence of a house

         10  with a similar footprint to the current house.

         11                 However, a survey of the property

         12  drawn in 1919, submitted by the current owner after

         13  the historic district was designated depicts only a

         14  one-story T-shaped building at a location to the

         15  west of the present house. The present house does

         16  appear on a survey made in 1924, which shows the

         17  house in the same location as the historic building.

         18  This survey was also submitted by the current owner

         19  after designation.

         20                 Finally, the Commission reviewed

         21  architectural plans that appeared to be original

         22  drawings from the 1920s construction.

         23                 These drawings indicate a new

         24  structure that is built in part on existing

         25  foundation walls. This is consistent with an
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          2  inspection of the property by Landmark staff in

          3  April 2005, which found segments of an earlier

          4  foundation wall which may represent remnants of the

          5  original 19th century house.

          6                 At the time of its designation, the

          7  house at 41-45 240th Street, which retained much of

          8  its 1920s appearance with some minor mid-twentieth

          9  century alterations, displayed many qualities

         10  relating it to two significant periods in the

         11  development of the Douglaston Hill Historic

         12  District. Its positioning at the back of its large

         13  sloping wooded lot was evocative of the ideals of

         14  bucolic suburban living that were being espoused in

         15  the mid-nineteenth century, when the initial

         16  development of the Douglaston Hill Historic District

         17  began. Its neo-Colonial-style architecture reflected

         18  the early twentieth century when interest in

         19  historic preservation and Colonial architecture

         20  produced many sympathetic rehabilitations of older

         21  houses and new house designs based on Colonial-style

         22  precedents. The 1920s was a significant time period

         23  in the development of the Douglaston Hill Historic

         24  District, as evidenced by the inclusion of nine

         25  other houses out of a total of 31 in the district,
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          2  which were either constructed or significantly

          3  remodeled during that decade.

          4                 Furthermore, its gabled roof with

          5  overhanging and returning eaves, prominent brick

          6  chimney, and front and side porches were all

          7  hallmarks of its neo-Colonial style.

          8                 Subsequent to designation, on July

          9  27, 2005, and before Justice Feinman's decision, the

         10  Commission approved plans and issued a Certificate

         11  of Appropriateness for the enlargement and

         12  alteration of the house in a manner consistent with

         13  its 1920s neo-Colonial style architecture. The work,

         14  which is currently being carried out, consists of

         15  the addition of two and a half story subordinate

         16  wing and one story enclosed porch on its north side,

         17  one- and two-story additions to the rear facade, the

         18  addition of roof dormers, the restoration of an open

         19  front porch, changes to the sizes and positions of

         20  some windows and new fenestration on the existing

         21  south side porch. Although the work has deviated

         22  somewhat from what was approved by the Commission,

         23  the house at present retains many of the attributes

         24  that support its inclusion within the boundaries of

         25  the historic district, including its architecture
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          2  based on Colonial style precedents, its positioning

          3  at the rear part of the lot, and the fact that the

          4  building sits on the only remaining, largely intact,

          5  original lot from the district's earliest

          6  development period.

          7                 The Commission urges you to affirm

          8  the redesignation.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: So, let me make

         10  sure I have this right. So, the Commission

         11  designated this property as part of the Douglaston

         12  Hill Historic District. The owners fought that

         13  designation in court based on the designation for it

         14  and were successful. The Court urged the Commission,

         15  if they wanted to include this in the designation of

         16  the Historic District to take another look, and

         17  that's what you did. You had another designation

         18  report done. Another hearing and another vote to

         19  include this in the Historic District, correct?

         20  Okay.

         21                 As far as I understand it, the reason

         22  the judge excluded this or vacated the designation

         23  the first time around was because of errors in the

         24  designation report.

         25                 How is the house now -- how does the
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          2  house now relate to the second designation report?

          3  Does the second designation report still accurately

          4  describe the house?

          5                 MR. SILBERMAN: Yes. Yes, it does.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Okay. I ask,

          7  because as you mentioned, before Judge Feinman's

          8  decision, the Commission approved plans and I assume

          9  permits were granted to do what sounds like a

         10  substantial amount of work; is that correct?

         11                 MR. SILBERMAN: Correct. The owners

         12  applied -- Mark Silberman, General Counsel to the

         13  Landmarks Commission. The owners applied for work

         14  prior to the Supreme Court's decision, proposed work

         15  on their building. They wanted to add some wings and

         16  expand it, based on their application the Commission

         17  approved plans to alter the house in ways that were

         18  sympathetic to the architecture of the building.

         19                 The owners are performing that work.

         20  That work has deviated somewhat from what the work

         21  that was approved of the C of A, but the

         22  Commissioners, the owners came to the Commission, at

         23  the public hearing, the second public hearing, made

         24  the argument that the house should no longer be

         25  considered contributed because the deviations were
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          2  too great. The Commission considered it, looked at

          3  photos, considered the testimony of the LPCs staff

          4  about how the changes differed, and based on their

          5  expert views and expertise, determined the house is

          6  still stylistic of the 1920s, an enlarged 1920s

          7  house. It is in line with the additions approved the

          8  by Commission as proposed by the owner, and based on

          9  that, redesignated the building as part of the

         10  district.

         11                 And as Ms. Jackier said, the 1920s is

         12  a significant time in the development of this

         13  district. Nine of 31 houses, ten, if you include

         14  this house now, are from that period. And based on

         15  all those facts and the facts that the owners

         16  presented about the changes to the house, the

         17  Commissioner determined it was appropriate to

         18  reinclude this in the district.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: So, the owner has

         20  been, this is an incidence, it sounds like, where

         21  the Commission has worked closely with the owner to

         22  allow them to do, would you say everything they

         23  wanted to do, most of what they wanted to do?

         24                 MR. SILBERMAN: I'll let them decide

         25  how happy they are with the Commission's review of
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          2  their applications, but they applied for a fence

          3  around their property, we gave them the fence around

          4  their property. They applied to substantially

          5  enlarge their house, the Commission gave them

          6  permits to substantially enlarge their house. So, I

          7  believe the system has worked very well, and the

          8  house right now would be like any other house in the

          9  district where if the Commission gave an approval to

         10  expand the house and the work exceeded the permits,

         11  the Commission would review that work and decide

         12  whether it could be still appropriate,

         13  notwithstanding it had exceeded the scope of the

         14  permit and the Commission basically did that when it

         15  looked at the owners' pictures of the house and

         16  listened to their testimony at the hearing and came

         17  to the conclusion this house is still a 1920s house,

         18  and I think the pictures speak for themselves,

         19  actually, when you look at the pictures.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: So, the owners

         21  have been given permission to build a fence and

         22  enlarge their house?

         23                 MR. SILBERMAN: Correct.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: What has been

         25  retained, despite the work that's been done that
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          2  contributes to the historical value of the property?

          3                 MR. SILBERMAN: The Commission found

          4  that the entire design of this house is consistent

          5  with the neo-Colonial style architecture, which is a

          6  1920 style architecture, and that the additions to

          7  it are consistent with that style.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Does it still

          9  have its gabled roof?

         10                 MR. SILBERMAN: Yes.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Does it still

         12  have its prominent brick chimney?

         13                 MR. SILBERMAN: Yes.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Does it still

         15  have its front and side porches?

         16                 MR. SILBERMAN: Some are enclosed,

         17  but, yes.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: And does it still

         19  have the overhanging and returning eaves?

         20                 MR. SILBERMAN: Yes.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Okay.

         22                 You also mentioned the importance of

         23  the location of this property in relation to the

         24  layout of the historic district; could you explain

         25  that again?
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          2                 MR. SILBERMAN: Well, the house was

          3  originally built at the back -- it's a very large

          4  lot as you can see from the map, and it was built in

          5  the back corner up on a hill, which is sort of

          6  consistent with notions of the time, sort of a

          7  romantic suburban living, where you're sort of up on

          8  a hill, on a wooded hill, you have views. It's also

          9  situated away from the railroad tracks. And that's

         10  where every house that's been built on this property

         11  has been built. The original house was built there,

         12  the little house that the owners showed us on their

         13  plans that we had never seen before, until after

         14  designation, showed a little house also roughly in

         15  that location. And now we have the current house at

         16  that location.

         17                 So, it is a consistent with the

         18  siting of a house in the 1920s, based on principals

         19  that inform the development of this district.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: This is a large

         21  lot compared to the other lots in the district, or

         22  average?

         23                 MR. SILBERMAN: This is, one of the

         24  other significant things about this property, this

         25  is a large, this is one of the original lots, it's
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          2  an undivided original lot from the original part of

          3  the development, which the exception of a small part

          4  that was taken from the railroad right away, this is

          5  the original lot and represents the planning and the

          6  vision of the original development.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: If the owner

          8  wanted to build a garage or an artist studio, or a

          9  guest house somewhere else on the property, would

         10  the owner be able to do that?

         11                 MR. SILBERMAN: The owner would have

         12  to apply to the commission and make arguments based

         13  on appropriateness. But given the detached garages

         14  are certainly appropriate in this district. And an

         15  out-building on a property of this size would also

         16  be something that I could imagine the Commission

         17  would find appropriate.

         18                 It's hard to answer that question

         19  without seeing a specific proposal at a specific

         20  location --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: No, I understand.

         22                 MR. SILBERMAN: But certainly the

         23  Commission recognizes all of these houses, suburban

         24  houses, have been expanded, which is exactly why

         25  they allowed the original house to be expanded.
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          2                 So, I think they would have a very

          3  good chance, certainly a very good opportunity to

          4  put a detached garage on the property. As for a

          5  second out-building, I don't know that I can really

          6  opine on that.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Okay. I have a

          8  couple more questions, but I wanted to give Council

          9  Member Avella an opportunity, since this is in his

         10  district, to either make a comment or ask a

         11  question.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: Thank you,

         13  Madam Chair. Actually, you asked some of the

         14  questions that I would have asked.

         15                 I was momentarily distracted for a

         16  second as part of your question. Let me just go back

         17  and play devil's advocate. How would the removal of

         18  this -- because in effect, we're putting it back,

         19  but if we didn't do that, how would that affect the

         20  overall historic district?

         21                 MR. SILBERMAN: Well, it would remove

         22  a very tangible reminder of the original design

         23  intent for the development of this area, but

         24  removing this lot, which, like I said is the only

         25  surviving large lot. It would also cut off two of
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          2  the district, or the district would have to run

          3  along the street to pick up two houses across the

          4  street from this, which are two of the oldest houses

          5  in the district.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: So, in effect,

          7  we would no longer have a contiguous district,

          8  except by a street?

          9                 MR. SILBERMAN: Correct.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: I'm going to

         11  reserve some comments until after the public

         12  hearing, but for my colleagues, let me just make a

         13  quick comment, that the Douglaston Hill Historic

         14  District was a long-fought battle, 14 years, for the

         15  community to finally win approval on this, which the

         16  Council did I think a year and a half ago.

         17                 I favor putting this house back in

         18  the district. I think many of you know as Chairman

         19  of the Zoning Committee I look at these things,

         20  these type of things, respond to homeowners' needs,

         21  we adjust zoning applications, sometimes we take

         22  people out if they don't want to be in the zoning

         23  application. So, I deal with this almost each and

         24  every day, and in this case, as much as I'd like to

         25  bend over backwards for the homeowners, I think to
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          2  do so would be a disservice to the historic district

          3  and the community.

          4                 So, I would urge my colleagues to

          5  vote in favor of the redesignation.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: I guess I would,

          7  before I turn to Council Member Comrie, ask, you

          8  know, in the same vein, I'm sure the homeowner is

          9  going to say even though they weren't designated

         10  they worked with you, they got permits, they did

         11  work consistent with what you approved and what

         12  would be appropriate, so why should they be

         13  penalized now by being designated. Not that I think

         14  it's a penalty, but, obviously, they view it that

         15  way.

         16                 So, what would your response be to

         17  that?

         18                 MR. SILBERMAN: I would say again that

         19  I don't think there's a penalty here at all. This

         20  building was part of the district that they bought

         21  into when they purchased this property. As Council

         22  Member Avella mentioned, this is something the

         23  community worked very hard with the Commission, this

         24  is very important lot within the district. They

         25  subsequently applied to the Commission to expand
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          2  their house. The Commission gave them very

          3  substantial expansions to their house, because they

          4  were appropriate to the house and they were done in

          5  an appropriate way. I think that there is no

          6  penalizing them to be back in the district they

          7  bought into originally. It's not like their house is

          8  a non-contributing house that has no bearing, no

          9  relationship to this historic district. This is a

         10  house that has direct relation to the district.

         11  Again, I would encourage all the Councilpeople to

         12  look at the picture. This is a house that

         13  contributes to the whole sense of place of this

         14  community, and the fact of the matter is, hopefully

         15  these people will want to live there, have a happy

         16  time there, and live a long time, but if they sell

         17  this house and it's not designated, the house,

         18  someone could subdivide this property, put a lot of

         19  buildings on here, they could tear down the house

         20  and put up something new that does not contribute to

         21  the district. So, I believe there is no penalty

         22  here. They got an approval from the Commission.

         23  Obviously it's what they wanted to do, because they

         24  went ahead and built it. It wasn't like the

         25  Commission was forcing them to do something with
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          2  their house.

          3                 I mean, they could have torn it down

          4  after Justice Feinman's decision. They didn't. This

          5  is the house they want to live in and so I don't see

          6  any penalty or harm to them.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: I guess you could

          8  make the argument that it would be unfair to the

          9  other homeowners within the historic district, if

         10  they're carved out, in that sense.

         11                 Council Member Comrie.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: So, let me get

         13  this straight, you're saying that you want this

         14  designated to protect the other houses, not so much

         15  so that this house is worthy of designation?

         16                 MR. SILBERMAN: That's not what I

         17  said, Council member. What I said was we need to

         18  protect this house.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: You're saying

         20  that you're more concerned about them eventually

         21  subdividing and building something that's out of

         22  character with the rest of the district?

         23                 MR. SILBERMAN: No. What I'm saying is

         24  the house that exists right now is the house that

         25  contributes to this district. If it's not designated
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          2  --

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: You also said

          4  that you're concerned, and you did say that if

          5  they're not designated, that they could tear it down

          6  and build something out of character. You did say

          7  that.

          8                 MR. SILBERMAN: Correct. And that

          9  would be true with any building in any historic

         10  district.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: And you do say

         12  within your findings that the house on page 12 of

         13  your findings and designation, that the house was

         14  demolished. It was substantially demolished between

         15  1909 and 1919 and that the present house was

         16  constructed in the early '20s. This is, I'm reading

         17  from the Historic Designation Report.

         18                 MR. SILBERMAN: Yes, that's correct.

         19  In the Commission, nine of the other houses in this

         20  district of 31 houses were built in the 1920s. This

         21  house was built in 1920. So, the fact that it's not

         22  a house which we originally thought may have been

         23  existing from the 19th century, but in fact was a

         24  new house built in 1920s, doesn't change the

         25  significance of that house. It's, you know, more
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          2  than a third of the houses in the district, or

          3  slight less than a third of the houses in the

          4  district are from that period. The 1920s are a

          5  significant period in the development of this

          6  district, and based on that the Commissioners felt

          7  it was appropriate to reinclude it in the district,

          8  or if you will, continue to include it in the

          9  district, because it continues to contribute to this

         10  district.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay. But

         12  isn't it true that there was a legal finding done

         13  that vacated this from being part of this historic

         14  district?

         15                 MR. SILBERMAN: There was a decision

         16  by the lowest court, in the Supreme Court, that said

         17  that based on evidence that was not before the

         18  Commission at the time of designation, that it was

         19  appropriate to reconsider whether it wanted to

         20  include, the Commission wanted to include this in

         21  the district. So, the judge granted the petitioner's

         22  request, but remanded this matter to the Commission

         23  for further consideration, which is what the

         24  Commission has done.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Is it true
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          2  that the decision of the Commission to allow for the

          3  extension was not granted until after that hearing?

          4                 MR. SILBERMAN: I'm sorry?

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: If there was a

          6  request by the homeowners to make significant

          7  changes to the building before the hearing?

          8                 MR. SILBERMAN: While that decision

          9  was pending, while the case was before Justice

         10  Feinman, the owners came before the Commission and

         11  sought approval for their additions --

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Before the

         13  case went to Justice Feinman. Before the case went

         14  to Justice Feinman the homeowners came to Landmarks

         15  to ask for significant renovations and extensions to

         16  the building and was denied.

         17                 MR. SILBERMAN: No, it was granted.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: No, it wasn't

         19  granted until after the hearing with Justice

         20  Feinman. I'm making that point distinctively because

         21  I think it goes to the heart of the homeowners'

         22  problem.

         23                 My understanding, from what I've

         24  read, is that they went to Landmarks to ask for

         25  significant contextual renovations to the building
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          2  and were denied which led them to Justice Feinman,

          3  because they were frustrated with LPC for not

          4  listening to them when they first went to them.

          5                 MR. SILBERMAN: That's incorrect,

          6  Council member.

          7                 They came to the Commission, they

          8  applied --

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Do you have

         10  copies of correspondence between LPC and the

         11  homeowners?

         12                 MR. SILBERMAN: If you have something

         13  in front of you from the homeowner, they were never

         14  given to me prior to this, so I don't know what

         15  you're looking at.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Do you have

         17  the date when the LPC gave the homeowners the

         18  opportunity to do the construction alteration?

         19                 MR. SILBERMAN: It was July 27th,

         20  2005.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: And when was

         22  the date of Justice Feinman's decision?

         23                 MR. SILBERMAN: December 7th, 2005.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Pardon me?

         25                 MR. SILBERMAN: December of 2005.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: I'm sorry,

          3  give me both of those dates again.

          4                 MS. JACKIER: The Landmarks Commission

          5  approved the Certificate of Appropriateness for the

          6  additions to the building on July 27th, 2005, and

          7  then about five months later, December 7th, 2005,

          8  Justice Feinman made his decision.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: And that

         10  decision was in light of the fact that the

         11  homeowners had put in their request and he was aware

         12  of the request for the expansion during the hearing?

         13                 MR. SILBERMAN: I don't recall whether

         14  the facts that the owners had an approval from the

         15  Commission was before the Judge, whether he had

         16  knowledge or it or not I can't recall.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Who argued

         18  that case?

         19                 MR. SILBERMAN: The Law Department.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: The Law

         21  Department. And do you know when the case was

         22  presented?

         23                 MR. SILBERMAN: I don't have that in

         24  front of me when the hearing was.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay. My
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          2  concern is that the homeowners have tried to do

          3  alterations, and this is a general concern with all

          4  of Landmark issues, the homeowners are trying to

          5  cooperate, running through such walls and

          6  difficulties that it just takes their frustration

          7  level to the point where they don't want to

          8  participate with Landmarks. Even if they want to

          9  stay within the type of designation or the type of

         10  contextual appearance of the homes, as these

         11  homeowners obviously did when they purchased the

         12  house and made some original decisions, to try to

         13  keep it within the spirit, but within the specifics

         14  of trying to get this done, the ability to issue

         15  decisions, the ability to make the proper

         16  designations and the ability to come to some clear

         17  decisions is just so difficult for homeowners. It

         18  takes, you know, a period of time, especially these

         19  homeowners have an elderly mother that they'd like

         20  to move into the house, the time and effort that it

         21  requires to get this done is just so difficult that

         22  it makes it more than frustrating, it makes it

         23  almost impossible for them to bring an elderly

         24  person into the home, which they'd like to do in a

         25  hurry because they're jammed up by technicalities,
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          2  and I think that this is a major problem.

          3                 It's unfair to homeowners that are

          4  trying to help an elderly parent, which is

          5  commendable, to move back into the home, which is

          6  actually unusual in this day and age that people

          7  want their parents back with them, and they get

          8  jammed up by the City for years. This is now June of

          9  2007, and these findings were approved in 2005 after

         10  they purchased the home in 2004, I believe. So, here

         11  we are three years later and the work is still

         12  ongoing.

         13                 I kind of commiserate with them

         14  because I'm in a semi-similar situation where I'm

         15  trying to get a builder to finish something and he's

         16  not finishing it. But I'm not jammed up by this

         17  City. But this is just where we have the City just

         18  taking their time when we have people that have

         19  their own clock ticking. You know, I appreciate the

         20  desire of the community to create a historic

         21  district. I recognize it. This is a 14-year process.

         22  I've been to the other side of the area, I haven't

         23  been up to that particular area, you know, and I

         24  appreciate the homes and the desire to maintain an

         25  area, but when you look at the tax map breakdown,
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          2  there's still a possibility to include the district

          3  and not include the homeowners. This particular

          4  41-41 240th Street. I think that we really need to

          5  take a look at this. These homeowners that have been

          6  trying to extend their home so they could have their

          7  mother live in the house with their children, still

          8  haven't been able to get that done quickly. I think

          9  it's a failure on the part of the City, frankly, to

         10  be more accommodating to people that wanted to

         11  actually keep the broader design of the area, and

         12  it's just frustrating to me that they have to go

         13  through a negative process on this, when all they've

         14  been trying to do is to create a final version of

         15  their home within the context of the other area and

         16  they're getting frustrated.

         17                 MR. SILBERMAN: I was just going to

         18  say, I don't think this is a case where that's true.

         19  The Commission has granted these people, the owners,

         20  upon their applications, substantial renovations and

         21  substantial enlargement of their house. If there is

         22  an issue that they can't move an elderly parent into

         23  their house, it is not an issue that has ever been

         24  presented to the Commission, and received any kind

         25  of negative response. So, I'm not sure what they're
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          2  saying now. These people have been opposed to

          3  designation from the very beginning, they would be

          4  opposed no matter what, but I can say that I think

          5  the system has worked quite well here. This house

          6  has been -- they have a big family. We allowed it to

          7  be substantially altered to accommodate them. Those

          8  alterations were done stylistically and an

          9  architecturally appropriate way, and they have

         10  chosen to expand their house in that way. So, I

         11  obviously can't debate this in the abstract. But I

         12  think in this case the system has worked quite well.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay. Well,

         14  again, you did say earlier that they have the option

         15  to take the house down within the period that they

         16  have purchased it, but they did want to keep within

         17  the contextual area within the rest of the

         18  community. So, you know, to me it just seems that

         19  this is just a lesson in frustration, why people

         20  don't want to get their homes designated. You know,

         21  that's my level of frustration. It's coming from a

         22  lot of different resources, not just this particular

         23  instance.

         24                 MS. JACKIER: I think what we may be

         25  able to do for you is get the date of when the
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          2  owners applied to the Landmarks Commission. At the

          3  Landmarks Commission we designated the district in

          4  December 2004. They were issued the permit to make

          5  these substantial alterations in July of 2005, so

          6  that's six months later. So, I don't know if they

          7  applied to the Commission immediately after

          8  designation, but no matter what, they did within a

          9  few months come in and out of the Commission with

         10  substantial additions to their property. So, we can

         11  look in the date for you. They have not been waiting

         12  three years for any sort of action from the

         13  Commission in terms of their ability to move forward

         14  with expanding their house. They did get that permit

         15  to do the work in July of 2005. We can just find out

         16  how long it was --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: I think it may be

         18  helpful, maybe even subsequent to the hearing today,

         19  for the Commission to continue to speak with Council

         20  Member Comrie and lay out or try to assuage any

         21  concerns you might have about responsiveness in

         22  terms of what the applicant has suggested or

         23  requested and what the Commission has granted.

         24                 MR. SILBERMAN: We would be happy to

         25  do that.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: I'll defer the

          3  rest of my questions. Thank you, Madam Chair.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Council Member

          5  Avella.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: I'd like to

          7  take a moment to respond to some of the things that

          8  my colleague, Council Member Comrie, mentioned.

          9  Without going over point by point, I totally

         10  disagree with the assessment that the problem has

         11  been on the Landmark Preservation Commission's side.

         12  Obviously I've been very familiar with this entire

         13  process and I can tell you that the Landmarks

         14  Commission has bent over backwards in this

         15  situation. If there is any negativity, it is not on

         16  behalf of the Commission. And I think you know that

         17  I'm not afraid to attack a City agency when they

         18  have to be attacked. In this case I think they've

         19  done the right thing, and negativity is not on the

         20  City's side.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: I wanted to note,

         22  by the way, we've been joined by Council Member

         23  Rosie Mendez, of Manhattan, Council Member Miguel

         24  Martinez of Manhattan, and Council Member John Liu

         25  of Brooklyn and Council Member Annabel Palma from
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          2  the Bronx.

          3                 Do any of my other colleagues have

          4  questions for the Commission?

          5                 Okay, thank you.

          6                 MR. SILBERMAN: Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: The next panel to

          8  speak on this item, since the homeowner has asked to

          9  speak last, we will bring up, the next panel is in

         10  favor of the designation, it's Joseph Hellman, from

         11  Community Board 11, William Severs from the

         12  Douglaston Historical Society, and Simeon Bankoff,

         13  Historic Districts Council.

         14                 Please proceed. Introduce yourself

         15  for the record. Push in the button, please.

         16                 MR. HELLMANN: Okay. Chairperson

         17  Lappin and Council members, my name is Joseph

         18  Hellmann, and I'm a resident of the Douglaston Hill

         19  Historic District, member of Community Board 11 and

         20  Co-chair of its Landmarks Committee. And I am here

         21  to testify in support of the redesignation.

         22                 Douglaston Hill was nominated to the

         23  National State Register of Historic Places in 2000.

         24  The Statement of Significance recorded that, and I

         25  quote, "In its parklike setting, architectural

                                                            46

          1  LANDMARKS, PUBLIC SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2  expression and social history, Douglaston is

          3  representative of the evolution of the commuter

          4  suburb." And notably, the listing included the

          5  subject property.

          6                 Now, the proposal to create the

          7  Douglaston Hill Historic District, pursuant to the

          8  1965 Landmarks Law, had the unanimous support of

          9  residents of the district, and some of them have

         10  been so kind -- could you raise your hand -- to come

         11  here today in support.

         12                 It also had the unanimous support of

         13  every agency charged with review and responsibility.

         14  And these include Queens Community Board 11, the

         15  Landmarks Preservation Commission, LPC, the

         16  Department of City Planning and the City Council.

         17  And, again, that proposal included the subject

         18  property.

         19                 Now, subsequently the new and present

         20  owners of the property challenged, they did two

         21  things in court, they challenged the creation of the

         22  historic district and the inclusion of their

         23  property in the district, because of an

         24  inconsequential error in dating their house for the

         25  last quarter of the 19th century.
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          2                 They had uncovered documentation that

          3  the house was actually substantially constructed in

          4  the 1920s. You've heard this. Their petition was

          5  heard in the New York State Supreme Court, which

          6  determined that the creation of the district was

          7  neither arbitrary, capricious, nor an abuse of

          8  discretion by the LPC, but did require a review of

          9  the inclusion of the property in the light of the

         10  dating era.

         11                 As you heard, LPC reviewed the new

         12  documentation and, again, unanimously reaffirmed the

         13  inclusion of the property in the historic district.

         14  And this decision was recently unanimously confirmed

         15  by the Department of City Planning.

         16                 The property, again, as you heard, is

         17  unique in that it is within the integrity of the

         18  1853 subdivision, which created the Douglaston Hill

         19  community. Most of the hill's residential

         20  development occurred around the time that commuting

         21  to Manhattan became feasible with the opening of the

         22  East River Railroad Tunnel in 1909.

         23                 Now, some of the houses were

         24  constructed as late as the 1920s and retained period

         25  architecture as does the subject house, even with
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          2  its recent modifications.

          3                 Now, if all the 1920s houses were

          4  excluded because of their age, as is being proposed

          5  for this house, the district would be hollowed out

          6  and lose its sense of place.

          7                 As a key component of the northern

          8  end of the district, the subject property ties

          9  together several neighboring houses. Its removal

         10  from the district would isolate these houses and

         11  seriously diminish the Hill's sense of place at its

         12  northern end.

         13                 So, on behalf of the residents of the

         14  district and the Community Board, I urge you to

         15  affirm LPC's redesignation decision and thank you

         16  for this opportunity to testify.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you.

         18                 Usually we ask people to keep their

         19  comments to three minutes. We're not going to start

         20  the clock, but I do ask you to do your best to

         21  respect that, because we have other items on the

         22  agenda today.

         23                 MR. SIEVERS: Madam Chairlady, am I on

         24  the mic? Hello. Madam Chairlady, members of the

         25  Subcommittee, good afternoon.
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          2                 I'm the Vice President of the

          3  Douglaston Littleneck Historic Society, and I'm here

          4  to support the redesignation of the above-referenced

          5  property.

          6                 Subsequent to the Historic District

          7  designation of Douglaston Hill, and the inclusion of

          8  the subject property through the district, the

          9  property owners set in motion an attempt to have the

         10  entire district dissolved and their property freed

         11  from the compliance of New York City Preservation

         12  Laws.

         13                 The property owned by Mr. And Mrs.

         14  Mosley, the owners of the property Mr. And Mrs.

         15  Mosley sued in Supreme Court for what they said was

         16  an arbitrary and capricious designation and unfair

         17  to them because they were not aware of the timing of

         18  the designation at the closing for the property.

         19                 I'm submitting a copy of George

         20  Feinman's order demanding re-examination of all

         21  relevant and available documentation. As can be

         22  noted, the community did not exert any pressure to

         23  have the New York City Landmarks Preservation

         24  Commission repeat the determination.

         25                 The actual age of the petitioner's
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          2  house and this historic importance, as the judge

          3  said, came from his order.

          4                 Those are my prepared remarks, but

          5  I'd like to respond to something that I heard as I

          6  was listening to the other's testimonies. Long

          7  before the Mosley's ever became interested in this

          8  property, there was an effort around the community

          9  to have this area designated as a historic district

         10  in New York City.

         11                 The oldest house in the historic

         12  district dates from 1853. The youngest from 1955.

         13  There was a continuous to have the entire district,

         14  the entire area designated. We posted long signs in

         15  front of all the properties that were slated to go

         16  into the district. Mr. And Mrs. Mosley, they read

         17  the newspaper, they must have seen at least 12 of

         18  the various articles that were in the paper

         19  preceding the designation. As a matter of fact, Mrs.

         20  Mosley is very adept in using the local press. She's

         21  constantly putting articles in the paper that are

         22  slightly erroneous.

         23                 I'd like to make one reference to

         24  what I heard with regards to being unable to

         25  accommodate one's relative. With my testimony this
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          2  morning I produced four photographs of the property

          3  in its current state. The construction is apparently

          4  almost completed, anybody -- I defy anyone to

          5  explain to me what he sees on those pictures makes

          6  it impossible for the property owner to find a room

          7  for his wife -- for his mother.

          8                 Thirdly, I know there was a petition

          9  presented to the Landmarks Commission at the time of

         10  redesignation, and in viewing the signators on that

         11  petition, I'm appalled to see that most, if not all

         12  of the signators, are people that live outside the

         13  historic district. They live in another historic

         14  district. The historic district where Mr. and Mrs.

         15  Mosley were residents in the past. They are

         16  surrounded by people who are accustomed to dealing

         17  with the Historical Society and with the Landmarks

         18  Commission, and they knew full well when they were

         19  buying this property that it was slated to go into

         20  the district and be designated as the sixth historic

         21  district in the Borough of Queens, and the Borough

         22  of Queens lacks a lot of effort in regards to

         23  creating historic districts.

         24                 Thank you. I plead with you to

         25  consider this proposal favorably.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you.

          3                 Mr. Bankoff.

          4                 MR. BANKOFF: Good afternoon, Council

          5  members. I'm Simeon Bankoff, Executive Director of

          6  the Historic Districts. It's my pleasure to address

          7  you this afternoon.

          8                 We are in firm support of the

          9  reinclusion of this building within a historic,

         10  within the Douglaston Hill Historic District. When

         11  the City decides to designate a historic district,

         12  this is not done lightly. It is saying that the City

         13  is becoming a partner in the stewardship of this

         14  neighborhood or part of this neighborhood in

         15  perpetuity.

         16                 In this instance, after long, sought

         17  community-driven campaign, the City responded. They

         18  looked, the judged that this area is worthy of being

         19  preserved, the essence of the area, the sense of

         20  place into this area is in fact meritorious of being

         21  preserved in perpetuity. In perpetuity means

         22  forever. It doesn't mean for that five years, it

         23  doesn't mean for the next ten years.

         24                 The way the Landmarks Commission does

         25  this, as you all know, is through regulation. In
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          2  fact, this is a case, and I echo the words of Mark

          3  Silberman, that the process has worked. The most

          4  that the homeowners did apply for a permit to

          5  substantially alter their building. They did. The

          6  permit was granted. And in fact, the substantial

          7  alterations to the building only serve to enhance

          8  and preserve the scale and sense of place of the

          9  district.

         10                 It's shown, and I can tell you, I was

         11  part of HDC, we monitored the day-to-day workings of

         12  the LPC, I'd say roughly 20 percent of the homes in

         13  the neighboring Douglaston Historic District, which

         14  is 600 homes, as opposed to the 31 we're talking

         15  about here, have been substantially altered with the

         16  regulations of the Landmarks Preservation

         17  Commission, since the area's designation in 1998.

         18  And that has only really helped preserve and enhance

         19  the character of the neighborhood. This is not a

         20  negatory (sic) regulation. This is a way of

         21  preserving the area, not only for ourselves, but for

         22  our children. Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you. And

         24  what's interesting about that is, as I was listening

         25  to your testimony, that while the people who are
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          2  sitting here on the Committee now haven't voted for

          3  this, the Land Use Committee and the City Council

          4  have already voted once before to approve this

          5  Historic District, correct?

          6                 MR. BANKOFF: Yes.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Okay, thank you.

          8                 Do any of my colleagues have

          9  questions?

         10                 Council Member Comrie.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: You said you

         12  had pictures of the construction now? Someone said?

         13  The gentleman in the middle. I'm sorry, what's your

         14  name?

         15                 MR. SIEVERS: Yes, four pictures. I

         16  handed it in with my testimony.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay, thank

         18  you.

         19                 The alteration hasn't started yet.

         20                 MR. SIEVERS: You're looking at a

         21  picture, the alteration has been almost concluded.

         22  You're looking at the picture that was taken four or

         23  five weeks ago. So, the alterations are concluded.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: So the

         25  alterations look substantially like homes within the
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          2  1920s period, correct? You don't have any problems

          3  with the work they did or the type of work they did?

          4                 MR. SIEVERS: No. As a matter of fact,

          5  I think the commission will accept what you're

          6  looking at.

          7                 To a large degree it was what they

          8  approved initially.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Right. But you

         10  believe that the homeowner has made every effort to

         11  stay within the scope and the spirit of the Historic

         12  District with their alterations?

         13                 MR. SIEVERS: I think so.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: So that's why

         15  you want them to make sure this property is

         16  maintained in perpetuity, as Simeon would say?

         17                 MR. SIEVERS: That's right.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay. And to

         19  Simeon, you know that I've been on this Committee

         20  for five and a half years and I've had this ongoing

         21  issue regarding the Landmarks Commission's ability

         22  to quickly allow people that are looking to make

         23  their changes to get it done, correct? This is not a

         24  new issue for me.

         25                 MR. BANKOFF: No, it's not a new

                                                            56

          1  LANDMARKS, PUBLIC SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2  issue. According to LPC records they do issue the

          3  vast majority of their close to 10,000 permits

          4  within ten days.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay. But this

          6  permit wasn't done within ten days.

          7                 MR. BANKOFF: No. This was a larger

          8  issue which usually takes a month or two.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: And it took

         10  them six months, according to Diane, and that was

         11  only after the petitioners went public about it,

         12  correct?

         13                 MR. BANKOFF: I'm not familiar with

         14  the time lines, but according to what Mark had said

         15  earlier, the Landmarks Commission issued the permit

         16  for the alterations in July 25th, 2005 and Justice

         17  Feinman issued his decision to vacate the

         18  designation in December 7th, 2005.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: And Ms. Jackier

         20  said she wasn't sure what date the application had

         21  been filed and she was going to get back to you.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay. She's

         23  getting back to us.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Yes.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: All right.
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          2  You're right. You're right, Madam Chair.

          3                 Well, I want to just congratulate the

          4  two other gentlemen, Mr. Sievers and Mr. Hellman for

          5  fighting to try to develop the Historic District. My

          6  issue is not necessarily the district. I think that

          7  it's commendable that you want to preserve and

          8  maintain a piece of history. My issue is the ability

          9  of the City to quickly deal with changes and issues

         10  that are presented to them, especially by people

         11  that are looking to maintain the contextual

         12  significance of what's there in the neighborhood.

         13  This is not even an issue of a homeowner saying they

         14  didn't want the property at all here. I think we

         15  need to understand that it's incumbent upon the

         16  City, especially when there are pressures, when the

         17  homeowner had the original option to tear it down

         18  originally, that they had been trying to be

         19  cooperative, whether you used the media or not, I'm

         20  not going to get into that, we all manipulate the

         21  media from time to time, but that's a story for

         22  another day and another issue, but I think we need

         23  to move forward on this whole designation.

         24                 Is the location at the top of the

         25  hill? So all the other houses, you look up at their

                                                            58

          1  LANDMARKS, PUBLIC SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2  house from like, what is it, 43rd Avenue, 240-11

          3  43rd Avenue?

          4                 MR. SIEVERS: The major part of the

          5  district is on 43rd Avenue, then it proceeds north

          6  along 240th Street, and expands slightly, including

          7  the property in question. And at the extreme

          8  northern tip is the property that was built in 1853.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: But what I'm

         10  saying is, the entire district has to drive by that

         11  house in order to -- no, you don't, because you can

         12  go out on Douglaston Parkway. Okay. So, their house

         13  at the northern tip, the rest of the homes in that

         14  district --

         15                 MR. SIEVERS: Two homes north of it,

         16  two homes across the street, and there's one below

         17  on the southerly.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay. But what

         19  I'm saying, most people would exist out to

         20  Douglaston Parkway, they wouldn't necessarily go by

         21  this particular house to get out the district?

         22                 MR. SIEVERS: Well, everyone who lives

         23  on Depew Avenue, the northern part, has to pass

         24  there, and there's no way out of the cul-de-sac.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Right. And the
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          2  Depew Avenue part --

          3                 MR. SIEVERS: And there's a park south

          4  of the property, which includes a vista going north,

          5  and so all the homes on the northern end are visible

          6  for it to people that use the park, and folks that

          7  drive past the park on the easterly and the

          8  northerly.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay. All

         10  right. Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you.

         12                 MR. HELLMANN: Can I say something?

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: That's up to

         14  the Chair.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: If you do it

         16  within 60 seconds.

         17                 MR. HELLMANN: All right, one minute.

         18                 I have some dates here. The property

         19  was sold to Mr. And Mrs. Mosley on October 25th,

         20  2004. The Historic District was designated on

         21  December 14th, 2004. Three months later. July 27th,

         22  2005, LPC issued a Certificate of Appropriateness

         23  for the plans they had filed. So, the certificate

         24  was issued six months after the designation of the

         25  --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Right. I think

          3  his question, though, is around the application, the

          4  Certificate of Appropriateness. But I appreciate

          5  your effort. Thank you.

          6                 We're going to hear now from the

          7  owners, Mr. And Mrs. Mosley, and Steven Jackson,

          8  which will be the last panel on this item.

          9                 Please just introduce yourself for

         10  the record and begin.

         11                 MR. MOSLEY: Good morning. I'm Kevin

         12  Mosley.

         13                 MS. MOSLEY: Is this supposed to be

         14  off or on?

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: When the light is

         16  off, the mic is on.

         17                 MS. MOSLEY: My name is Diana Mosley.

         18  Together with my husband I own 41-45 240th Street.

         19                 My family opposes the inclusion of

         20  our home in the Douglaston Hill Historic District.

         21  We have a letter signed by 53 of our neighbors who

         22  oppose LPC's modification of the Douglaston Hill

         23  Historical District, including our one home.

         24                 We feel that this modification is an

         25  inappropriate use of Landmarks' power. As these
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          2  signatures attest, the goal of the enhancement of

          3  the City and faith in government are not bettered

          4  when an action is taken that casts a cloud over the

          5  whole landmarking process.

          6                 Landmarking has a very important role

          7  in our City, but whatever good landmarking achieves,

          8  such as in the original establishment of this

          9  district, it is undermined when the integrity of the

         10  process is called into question, and when properties

         11  are landmarked for the wrong reasons.

         12                 For that reason, we hope that this

         13  Committee uses this as an opportunity to reaffirm

         14  the public's confidence in the process by rejecting

         15  this modification, thereby reaffirming to the public

         16  that the homeowner's rights are respected and will

         17  be protected against unfair actions.

         18                 Being part of a historic district is

         19  a significant financial and practical burden on a

         20  family, and such a burden should only be imposed for

         21  the most pure and justifiable reasons. We do not

         22  believe that LPC's actions here are justifiable.

         23                 LPC is seeking to modify the district

         24  to include just our one house, to the City, to

         25  Queens and to the Historic District our one house
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          2  has little or no significance.

          3                 Although the Douglaston Hill

          4  neighborhood consists of over 110 homes, only 30 are

          5  in the district. In fact, we're located on a

          6  dead-end street where the houses on two sides of our

          7  home and on the rest of our block are not in the

          8  district. In response to traffic in front of our

          9  home, only the homeowners on Depew need to pass on

         10  our home and none of Depew is in the historic

         11  district. So we're at the end of that dead-end

         12  street.

         13                 Nonetheless, of the over 80

         14  neighborhood homes remaining outside the district,

         15  LPC seeks to modify the district to include only one

         16  home, ours, which we believe is selective

         17  enforcement of the law.

         18                 In December 2005, the Supreme Court

         19  determined that LPC acted in an arbitrary and

         20  capricious manner, and vacated our home's original

         21  inclusion in the Historic District. For a year and a

         22  half since that decision, the District has continued

         23  to exist without us and has not suffered for our

         24  absence.

         25                 Fourteen months after the Court's
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          2  decision, LPC finally acted to include us in the

          3  district. No one has explained why it took LPC --

          4  why LPC took no action for 14 months. If LPC did

          5  have good reasons to include our home in the

          6  district, it would have and should have acted over a

          7  year ago.

          8                 We believe that the only inclusion is

          9  that but for political wranglings of a small local

         10  group, this matter would have ended a year ago and

         11  my family would have been permitted to live in

         12  peace.

         13                 Further, to the extent that LPC is

         14  arguing that the Court permitted LPC to hold new

         15  hearings as to our home's potential place in the

         16  district, the only interpretation of that court

         17  order is that if LPC chose to proceed, it should do

         18  so in a prompt fashion, and certainly act before the

         19  circumstances of the house had materially changed.

         20                 After the Court Order my family

         21  obtained DOB permits and invested our life savings

         22  into renovating the house. During the period of the

         23  renovation, LPC did nothing until now. I have

         24  photographs of the house as it was in 2004 and

         25  photographs of it now, which I believe have been
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          2  distributed. At this time the house has undergone

          3  such a complete transformation, that it is no

          4  different from other new homes and fully renovated

          5  homes in the neighborhood, which are not in the

          6  district.

          7                 Our home is basically a home built in

          8  2007. Since the house was originally wood frame,

          9  much of it was rotten and needed work on everything.

         10  Now every element of the four exterior facades is

         11  entirely new and different. If you review the

         12  designation report, the report speaks in the vaguest

         13  generality and the report lists a significant -- and

         14  the items that the report lists as currently

         15  existing and significant are all new.

         16                 For example, the report refers to

         17  "Colonial styling," but it was restyled in 2007. As

         18  are many other houses that are built and renovated

         19  in 2007. Other than that, the report makes no

         20  reference to its current condition.

         21                 I draw your attention to the

         22  following changes we made during our renovation. The

         23  house was previously about 2,500 square feet and is

         24  currently about 5,000 square feet, not including

         25  three new open porches that did not exist before.
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          2                 We removed all of the windows, closed

          3  all of the old window openings and created a new

          4  window configuration, and installed new different

          5  style windows. We changed the front window

          6  configuration from asymmetrical and informal to a

          7  more formal symmetrical pattern. We added a large

          8  two-story bay window in one of the additions, which

          9  adds a formal vertical element that was previously a

         10  horizontal and formal facade.

         11                 We removed all of the original window

         12  shutters, which were rotten and falling apart but

         13  cannot replace them, due to the expense involved. We

         14  eliminated the enclosed sitting room in the front,

         15  and we have built an open porch and built two other

         16  porches, which we had permits for but which had not

         17  been built at the time LPC designated our house in

         18  the spring.

         19                 We demolished the small mud room in

         20  the back and replaced it with a larger room. We

         21  demolished the original front steps and replaced

         22  them. We removed the front door and replaced it with

         23  a different style door and side lights, and we

         24  removed all the original rotting siding and replaced

         25  it with siding of a different material.
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          2                 We removed all of the roof, we added

          3  a flat part and a hipped part to the roof and

          4  changed the entire roof line and roof configuration.

          5  In the replacement of the roof we also utilized a

          6  different color and style shingle material and

          7  eliminated some of the roof details as necessary.

          8                 We also added six dormers, five of

          9  which are depicted in the photographs.

         10                 Even a casual examination reveals

         11  that nothing of the original facade exists. Further,

         12  our work is ongoing and our permits are open. As a

         13  final matter, our lot is 35,000 square feet, which

         14  is three or four times the size of every other lot

         15  in the historic district. Far from contributing to

         16  the centerplace, this is a distinct difference

         17  between 41-45, differentiating the property from

         18  those in the district.

         19                 At this point my family simply wants

         20  to live in peace in this home that we built. We hope

         21  that this Committee declines to modify the historic

         22  district to include our home.

         23                 I believe there was a question of Mr.

         24  Silberman as to what of the original 1920s house was

         25  retained. I think he might have had difficulty
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          2  answering that question, but I can answer it. There

          3  is nothing. There is nothing retained of that house.

          4                 He points to the chimney, or I

          5  believe LPC points to the chimney, but basically

          6  every house in Queens has a chimney. Other than

          7  that, there is nothing else.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Do you want to

          9  testify as well?

         10                 MR. MOSLEY: If I may.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Sure.

         12                 MR. MOSLEY: I think the elephant in

         13  the room --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: If you could just

         15  introduce yourself for the record.

         16                 MR. MOSLEY: I'm sorry.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: That's okay.

         18                 MR. MOSLEY: Kevin Mosley. I'm one of

         19  the owners. I think the elephant in the room is that

         20  the house is on a 35,000 square foot lot. And no

         21  other lot in that district approaches it. It's

         22  quadrupled, four or five times the size of every

         23  one, just about, and I think Mr. Silberman kind of

         24  let the cat out of the bag when he said someone else

         25  could come along and subdivide it. That's not what
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          2  landmarking laws are meant to preserve. Landmarking

          3  law is meant to be used selectively in the pure

          4  sense for the right reason, when a home contributes

          5  to the sense of place and style. This is a house

          6  that's a 2007 house. Everything has been changed but

          7  the chimney and a small patch of bricks.  They make

          8  reference to a foundation that's inside, that I

          9  don't think anyone from LPC ever saw, certainly I

         10  never did. And the concern of the Douglaston

         11  Littleneck Preservation Society, was candidly told

         12  to me, that they were afraid we would subdivide the

         13  property and sell it off and build whatever, which

         14  isn't what we're going to do.

         15                 But that isn't what the landmarking

         16  process is about. And if it's used for the wrong

         17  reason, it's not right. And while I appreciate Mr.

         18  Silberman and some of the staff saying they worked

         19  with us, the reality is we had to bring a lawsuit.

         20  We didn't want to, we were at a point where we had

         21  documents, papers, showing that the LPC was wrong.

         22  They just simply didn't want to speak to us.

         23                 So, sort of we are being portrayed to

         24  certain people as non-cooperative or the bad guy, we

         25  didn't do anything wrong. The original reason that
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          2  this house was included was wrong, just plain wrong,

          3  100 percent wrong. So, after a year and a half of

          4  nothing happening, except a certain group seeing a

          5  house coming along and getting wind of a concern of

          6  subdivision, an application was made, I don't know

          7  what the right word was, but LPC was reached out to

          8  by the local group and all of a sudden we find

          9  ourselves here.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Well, I think

         11  many of us have questions, so I wanted to begin that

         12  dialogue. I mean, I have a number of questions for

         13  you, because this is not an individual landmark. I

         14  mean, very often items come before this Committee

         15  that are individual, stand-alone landmarks. This is

         16  something that we have to look at in the context of

         17  a historic district. And it's LPC's contention that

         18  this is a contributing property within the historic

         19  district, but we're not looking at this as if it

         20  were on its own on Douglaston Parkway separate and

         21  apart from the community, and I just wanted to, you

         22  know, as I think both Council Member Avella and

         23  Council Member Comrie noted, and Ms. Mosley, you

         24  mentioned that this was something that potentially

         25  came about because of the political wrangling of the

                                                            70

          1  LANDMARKS, PUBLIC SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2  small group of people, but this is something that

          3  was in the works for 14 years. This is something

          4  that the community was fighting for for a very long

          5  time. And that the community board and the local

          6  elected officials and other people were supportive

          7  of and you moved in or you purchased this property

          8  in the midst of that community organizing, so didn't

          9  you know that this property was likely to be

         10  designated?

         11                 MR. MOSLEY: We had absolutely no idea

         12  whatsoever. We lived in Douglaston Manor, which is

         13  separated, it's sort of an enclave. This is another

         14  neighborhood, to get to it you have to make a left

         15  and go down some winding roads, we didn't know, we

         16  just didn't know.

         17                 MS. MOSLEY: We also have three small

         18  children that occupy most of our time, so...

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: I mean, I

         20  understand, and, of course, I take you at your word,

         21  it's just when I buy, you know, if you're going to

         22  buy a piece of property, you do your due diligence,

         23  and this was not like something that was secretly

         24  done in the middle of the night, this was something

         25  that the community organized for almost a decade and
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          2  a half. But I also wanted to ask, because very often

          3  we have individual homeowners coming to us

          4  protesting designation, and one of the reasons they

          5  say is that if we get designated we're not going to

          6  be able to change our house. And that's persuasive I

          7  think to us sometimes. And here you're like the

          8  posterchild for a property that has been allowed to

          9  do substantial alterations and substantial

         10  enlargement to accommodate the size of your family

         11  and other things. So, very often when homeowners

         12  come to us, we promise them, or we say to them, work

         13  with the Commission. The Commission, if it's

         14  appropriate, will approve these kinds of changes.

         15  And here they have done that, so I wanted to ask

         16  your response to that.

         17                 MS. MOSLEY: Well, first, I definitely

         18  want to address that. Regarding the political

         19  influence on this, I just want to take a step back

         20  on your comments. What we're talking about is now,

         21  you know why LPC is acting against our one house

         22  now, when we have another 80 houses around us,

         23  including the houses next door to us that are not in

         24  the district, and we feel like for some reason we

         25  have been targeted. There is no reason why us and
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          2  not next door, or the house next to that or the

          3  house around the corner, or the house across the

          4  street. And when I talk about the political

          5  wranglings, I mean the current events, not a

          6  community's efforts to designate a whole district,

          7  but somehow our being targeted, we feel it's

          8  inappropriate for an agency to succumb to the

          9  political efforts of a group, and then afterwards to

         10  come up with a justification to do it.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: But you were

         12  included in the original district. They didn't sort

         13  of pick you out of the ether and say we're going to

         14  target this property, you were included in the

         15  original historic district, you fought that

         16  successfully in court, but I mean that's why they've

         17  come back to try and redesignate you a second time.

         18                 MS. MOSLEY: Well, part of our

         19  sentiment is that to the extent Landmarks was going

         20  to take this action, they could have acted, and they

         21  should have acted immediately or within months, not

         22  a year and a half later, and we feel that that's

         23  evidence that Landmarks really doesn't care about us

         24  anymore. They were like, you know what? They won the

         25  lawsuit and we're not going to pursue this anymore.
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          2  Let's just get on with things. And then a year and a

          3  half later we're basically at the whim of like a

          4  local group that's somehow making this into

          5  something that it's not.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: I think they

          7  care.

          8                 I asked them, and I should ask you. I

          9  mean, in terms of -- and I think Councilman Comrie

         10  was asking similar questions, what you wanted to do;

         11  are there alterations that you would want to do that

         12  you haven't already obtained permits for?

         13                 MS. MOSLEY: When we first purchased

         14  the home we actually came up with plans that, they

         15  were completely different from what we did. They

         16  had, you know, there were some versions that were a

         17  new house, there were some versions that were an

         18  extension out the front. You know, there were a

         19  multitude of options we were thinking of, but then

         20  when the house was designated, basically we were

         21  told this is not going to go anywhere, these plans

         22  will never be approved at this point. That you can

         23  present plans that may or may not be approved, but

         24  many of the options that we had considered, they

         25  were off the table. We couldn't go to Landmarks with
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          2  them. It would have set us back another year.

          3                 Just as a bit of background, you

          4  know, because I think people are thinking, you know,

          5  when you got out of the district, why didn't you

          6  just do what you wanted? You went along with the

          7  plans that Landmarks made you do. You know, we were

          8  carrying two mortgages at the time, trying to

          9  renovate one of these houses. We already had been

         10  delayed a year and a half, you know, more than a

         11  year in getting our final permits, you know,

         12  partially due to landmarks, partially due to DOB, at

         13  that point we had to go with what we had. Like there

         14  was no money left, there was no time left. We

         15  couldn't invest another six months in an architect

         16  coming up with another version, going to DOB again,

         17  then maybe Landmarks is going to come along and

         18  bring this in. We had to go with the plans we had.

         19  Are we happy in our home? We're happy because we

         20  love our kids and we have a nice home. Is it what we

         21  would have done if we could have done anything we

         22  wanted? No.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: My question is

         24  really at this point. Because you did purchase a

         25  home that was slated to be put into a historic
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          2  district. So, we are where we are now. My question

          3  is really moving forward. You've been able to

          4  enlarge the property substantially, and make

          5  changes; are there things that you want to do that

          6  you feel you wouldn't be able to at this point in

          7  time? Are there any applications you have pending?

          8                 MS. MOSLEY: Well, our next thing, we

          9  don't have a garage, and I believe somebody brought

         10  that up.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: I did.

         12                 MS. MOSLEY: Thank you. We want to

         13  build a garage with a studio over it. You know, our

         14  architect tells us that the only way we can do that

         15  is to subdivide the property. We have, since we've

         16  been dealing with Landmarks, submitted an

         17  application to Landmarks for that, not for the

         18  garage. And they haven't done anything with it. It's

         19  been months.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: You have an

         21  application for the garage? What did you submit an

         22  application for?

         23                 MS. MOSLEY: We submitted an

         24  application, somehow, I'm not sure how this works,

         25  you submit it to City Finance for the subdivision,
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          2  and then it gets, they bounce it wherever it has to

          3  go.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: So, you submitted

          5  an application for a subdivision, not for a garage.

          6                 MS. MOSLEY: No. Because we can't

          7  design the garage until we know we have a place to

          8  put it. You know, because with the room over it, I

          9  believe it's considered a new structure. And the

         10  reason why we need a separate garage is because in a

         11  historic district it's commonly known they will not

         12  permit you to have an attached garage. So, in our

         13  original planning, though we would have liked an

         14  attached garage, that was something we had to

         15  scratch off our list to expedite moving through this

         16  process, now we can come back to that. So, yes, we

         17  have submitted a proposal to Landmarks to subdivide

         18  the property to have a site to build a garage with a

         19  studio over it, and that has not gone anywhere. It's

         20  been four months. It may even be more than four

         21  months. I'm not sure.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Okay. Do my

         23  colleagues have questions?

         24                 Council Member Barron.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: I don't know,

                                                            77

          1  LANDMARKS, PUBLIC SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2  maybe the Chair would have to clear this up, but

          3  there is something very significantly different

          4  about the two presentations, one from the Landmarks

          5  Commission, I mean Landmarks, and from the owners;

          6  and that is, the state of the house now. The

          7  alterations. When you asked the Landmarks they said

          8  basically the roof was --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: We can bring them

         10  back, if you'd like, Council Member Barron.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Right. Because

         12  there is a real discrepancy here, and when I hear

         13  from the owners, it's totally different. It has no

         14  historic value. It's been altered so much that

         15  what's the fuss, you know, leave us alone, we no

         16  longer have any historical value. And then they name

         17  all the parts and they show the pictures. It looks

         18  radically different when you're looking at the

         19  pictures, but when you heard from Landmarks, it

         20  basically was some minor changes that really didn't

         21  alter the historical value. And then, you know, we

         22  hear, well, first they thought it was in 1800s, but

         23  it wasn't, it was in 1920, yes, but so are ten other

         24  buildings, nine other homes in the 1920s, so whether

         25  it was back then or 1920 is not the point. You know,
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          2  so I think I just want to see, is this still a

          3  historical value piece of property or has it been

          4  altered so much that the historical significance is

          5  not there.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: I think that's a

          7  good question. And what we can do, we can see if my

          8  colleagues have other questions for the owners, we

          9  can ask Landmarks to come back and address that,

         10  because they're still here.

         11                 Council Member Oddo.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: I'd just like to

         13  follow up on the Chair's question to you, about

         14  specifically what you see as the harm of you being

         15  included in this district. Is it solely the garage,

         16  or what else.

         17                 MS. MOSLEY: Well, that's a hard

         18  question to ask, and it's not the first time we've

         19  gotten asked it, so it's kind of multi-fold. On a

         20  more abstract level, I mean property rights are

         21  civil rights, and when you infringe on a civil right

         22  no one asks you why do you care. You just care. It's

         23  an abridgement of your right, as was said, in

         24  perpetuity; whereas, zoning can change, laws can

         25  change, buildings codes can change, this is an
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          2  infringement in perpetuity and we believe it is

          3  being done for the wrong reasons, and that just

          4  makes it wrong.

          5                 If you're asking me as a practical

          6  matter, I want to live in this house for the rest of

          7  my life. I mean, we chose this place and promised my

          8  kids we would never move again, we put everything we

          9  have into it. As a practical matter, I don't believe

         10  I have to explain to this Committee that it is a

         11  burden for a homeowner to do that. For us, you know,

         12  I'm not complaining about that, except you have to

         13  look at it in context. It's like we have all the

         14  burdens for the wrong reasons. Well, what happens to

         15  us the next time? When we first went to Landmarks,

         16  they kept insisting in their agendas, when we tried

         17  to get on the calendar with our permits, 19th

         18  century house. We kept telling them, if you hold us

         19  to a standard of a 19th century house, you know,

         20  we're not going to even get these plans passed,

         21  these plans that we watered down to satisfy you.

         22  It's a 20th century house, can you look at our

         23  evidence? When they shut us down, that was wrong.

         24  How do we know in the future we're just not going to

         25  get shut down again?
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          2                 You know, yes, I appreciate very

          3  much, Mr. Silberman, you know, kindly has said that

          4  he will work with us, the Commission will work with

          5  us, but in a few years Mr. Silberman will be on to

          6  other endeavors, each of the Commissioners will be

          7  on to other endeavors, and the staff members will

          8  change, and the flavor of that Commission changes

          9  every day. In perpetuity means, I will own the house

         10  but there are going to be hundreds of Commissioners

         11  ahead of me that I have to deal with when I have to

         12  make practical changes, and it's just the reality of

         13  being a homeowner, you don't want to have to build

         14  an addition or a garage, you will make changes to

         15  your home. You just will.

         16                 So, I hope I didn't go on too much,

         17  but it is multi-faceted. There is the feeling that

         18  it's an inherent wrong but also a practical burden.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: The reason why I

         20  ask the question is, I have a strong ideology too,

         21  and I stand on it, and I fall down sometimes

         22  standing on it, and my question was, from a

         23  practical impact, because we're talking about one

         24  home, is there a list that you can produce for the

         25  Committee of things that you anticipate? I
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          2  understand you can't anticipate everything and

          3  understanding that you're talking about a lifetime

          4  hopefully in this one home, of issues that may come

          5  up, but is there a list of specific items that you

          6  would want the Committee to try to work with you to

          7  address? I think we've done that before on this

          8  Committee when we've had single items, and try to

          9  anticipate things like the garage where we can try

         10  to get with you, for you some agreements, and

         11  frankly, the quid pro quo should be some sort of

         12  deed restriction, too, so that you can't eventually

         13  turn around and -- well, if you get the designation

         14  I guess it doesn't matter. But my point is, for this

         15  one instance that we're talking about one family, I

         16  would try to make a list of items that we should, as

         17  a Committee, seek to help them get resolved, where

         18  you end up with designations but you have a laundry

         19  list of relief that perhaps we could help them get.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Okay, thank you

         21  very much. And I wanted to thank you for coming and

         22  taking the time.

         23                 Do any of my colleagues have any

         24  further questions?

         25                 Okay, I wanted to ask the Commission
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          2  to come back and to address Council Member Barron's

          3  question.

          4                 MS. MOSLEY: Thank you.

          5                 MR. MOSLEY: Thank you.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Yes, I just

          7  wanted to get some clarity, because you know, we

          8  just heard testimony, then they showed the pictures,

          9  the alterations. Would this be accurate?

         10                 MR. SILBERMAN: I haven't seen those.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Maybe one of the

         12  Sergeants could share the photos.

         13                 MR. SILBERMAN: I don't believe the

         14  Mosleys would show you pictures that aren't

         15  accurate. So, I'm not going to suggest that they're

         16  going to be lying to the Board here. But I think the

         17  point is that the Commission approved a lot of

         18  changes of this house. What they've testified to is

         19  that, as you heard, they've described a lot of

         20  changes. I don't think I heard them once actually

         21  say the Commission didn't approve this.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Let me just,

         23  so we can cut to the chase, I'm not talking about

         24  whether you approved it or not, but did that

         25  approval alter it so much that it lacks historical
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          2  value and significance, from the roofing to the

          3  paneling and -- you said no, they said yes. That's

          4  what I wanted to get a little more clarity on. It

          5  surely looks radically different.

          6                 MR. SILBERMAN: It doesn't look that

          7  radically different.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Okay.

          9                 MR. SILBERMAN: It looks like an

         10  altered 1920s neo-Colonial-style house that was --

         11  the alterations you're looking at are alterations

         12  that the Commission, a panel of experts with

         13  architects, planners, et cetera, looked at and said

         14  this is an appropriate way to, as they pointed out,

         15  double the size of their house.

         16                 Yes, they took the roof off and maybe

         17  the Commission said you shouldn't take the roof off.

         18  The roof that's there now, they presented all of

         19  this evidence to the Commission at the second

         20  hearing. The Commission considered the entire scope

         21  of the changes they made and concluded that the

         22  changes are appropriate. If they had come in to us

         23  and said we need to take the siding off because it's

         24  rotting, the Commission would say put on new siding.

         25  So, the stylistic elements of the house and the way

                                                            84

          1  LANDMARKS, PUBLIC SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2  it's been altered is perfectly consistent and

          3  appropriate to an altered historic house, one that's

          4  been modernized and kept up-to-date and expanded in

          5  a way to accommodate modern families' needs.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: And so you're

          7  saying that this doesn't take away whatsoever the

          8  historical value --

          9                 MR. SILBERMAN: That's right.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:-- Of the

         11  house. And they said it has been altered so much,

         12  even the whole roof -- you didn't recommend that the

         13  roof be altered that much, right?

         14                 MR. SILBERMAN: No, I don't think they

         15  applied to alter, to take the entire roof off. It

         16  wasn't part of the original approval. They did it.

         17  The Commission considered it. When they thought

         18  about --

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Now that they

         20  have done it, does that alter the historical --

         21                 MR. SILBERMAN: No.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: So, what would

         23  alter the historical value of the house?

         24                 MR. SILBERMAN: Every house needs a

         25  new roof after, in this case, 90 years. So, that's
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          2  not an unusual situation.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: What would

          4  alter the historical value?

          5                 MR. SILBERMAN: I think if they had

          6  expanded the house by changing the roof style, by

          7  putting on additions in a way that was

          8  inappropriate, over-scaled additions, by making it

          9  into a New Jersey brickface house, but those are the

         10  kind of changes the Commission might look upon less

         11  favorably.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Do any of the

         13  other houses in the district look like this?

         14                 MR. SILBERMAN: There are other 1920s

         15  houses. I don't know off the top of my head whether

         16  they're neo-Colonial houses.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: That's not

         18  what my question was. Are there other houses in the

         19  district that look like this house?

         20                 MR. SILBERMAN: I think the answer is

         21  yes. There are other houses during this period that

         22  have a similar relationship to the district,

         23  correct.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Similar

         25  relationship. I'm just trying to find out if it was
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          2  altered so much that it's no longer having the 1920s

          3  value.

          4                 MR. SILBERMAN: What I'm trying to

          5  stress, Councilman, perhaps I'm doing it inartfully,

          6  is that the Commission does not stop change. The

          7  Commissioner regulates change.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Clear on that.

          9                 MR. SILBERMAN: And we allow buildings

         10  to be expanded. As you've heard them say, we allowed

         11  the expansion of this house from 2,500 to roughly

         12  5,000. If it's done in the right way, with the right

         13  kind of style, the right materials, it's an

         14  appropriate way to expand a house in a way to

         15  continue to make sure that continues to contribute

         16  to the sense of place of the Historic District. And

         17  I believe that's what's happened here.

         18                 The fact that at some point siding

         19  will need to be replaced, wood siding. It's 90 years

         20  old now. At some point. The Commission has to allow

         21  new siding to be put on. Roofs have to be replaced.

         22  We allow new roofs to be put on.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: So, basically

         24  the mere fact that the Commission allowed it to

         25  happen, then you're saying it still has historical
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          2  value or you wouldn't have allowed it to happen in

          3  the first place.

          4                 MR. SILBERMAN: Correct.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: I have one

          7  question to follow-up, and I did ask this earlier,

          8  but in regards to the owner's desire to build a

          9  garage, is this the kind of thing that you generally

         10  approve in a Historic District, that they would

         11  expect potentially a favorable --

         12                 MR. SILBERMAN: We've have this

         13  conversation with the Mosleys many times. I would

         14  expect a favorable determination on a detached

         15  garage in their property, yes.

         16                 To also respond to you, Council

         17  member, we did e-mail, thanks to Blackberries, they

         18  applied for their permit in March of '05. So, the

         19  district was designated in December, they applied in

         20  March of '05 and they had a permit to double the

         21  size of their house in July.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay, thank

         23  you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Council Member

         25  Comrie, do you have a question?
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: I'm sorry.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: No, please, if

          4  you have questions, go ahead.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: When did they

          6  apply for the --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: I'm sorry,

          8  Council Member Martinez did ask to ask questions.

          9  Sorry, Miguel.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Thank you,

         11  Mr. Whip.

         12                 I just want to follow the line of

         13  questioning of Councilman Barron. I don't think

         14  we're getting a straight answer, in terms of, and

         15  I'm not an expert, but when we look at this room, it

         16  is entirely different. It's not just replacing a

         17  roof as you categorize it. I mean, just look at it.

         18  A totally different roof, with one, two, three, four

         19  window structures that were not there before, and a

         20  total new extension to the house, to my left-hand

         21  side of it, and it's not just simply changing

         22  something that's rotten, it's changing major

         23  structural changes.

         24                 So, if you could just briefly tell

         25  the Committee, if this is not significant, what

                                                            89

          1  LANDMARKS, PUBLIC SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2  would change the value of a historical house because

          3  this looks major to me.

          4                 MR. SILBERMAN: Well, the dormers,

          5  what you're looking at, there are dormers on the

          6  roof. That is a historically appropriate alteration

          7  for a 1920s house. The Commission approved three of

          8  those four dormers in their application. The

          9  Commission approved the closing of the porch. The

         10  Commission included the other addition that you're

         11  referring to, because they were appropriate ways to

         12  change the house in the historically appropriate

         13  manor, and, so, yes, it looks different, but it's

         14  different in a way (a) that's appropriate

         15  architecturally, and (b) for the most part it was

         16  approved by the Commission. I don't recall whether

         17  they even asked to put the fourth dormer on. I don't

         18  believe they were asked, they were told no, so it

         19  may be that the Commission would have approved that

         20  at the time as well.

         21                 So, that's what I'm trying to say, is

         22  that the Commission regulates change. It recognizes

         23  that houses have to be maintained, restored,

         24  repaired, and often expanded to deal with modern

         25  needs of growing family, different expectations of
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          2  what it means to live in a house. And we did it in

          3  this case.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: And then you

          5  were answering a question on the issue of the

          6  garage; what's the issue of in terms of allowing an

          7  extension?

          8                 MR. SILBERMAN: There is no issue

          9  really.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: It's an

         11  application pending to be --

         12                 MR. SILBERMAN: There is no

         13  application pending we have had a conversation with

         14  --

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: I thought we

         16  heard testimony there was an application?

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: About a

         18  subdivision.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: But the

         20  subdivision has to do with the garage.

         21                 MS. JACKIER: It's not an application

         22  that's at the Landmarks Commission. So we don't have

         23  an open application for a new garage.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: I'm sorry,

         25  Chair, what were you saying?
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: It's with DOB.

          3                 MR. SILBERMAN: Let me just make sure

          4  -- the Mosleys testified there is an open

          5  application for a subdivision of the property, and I

          6  didn't know that. I have not gotten a response.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: I heard

          8  testimony that there is an application at Landmarks

          9  and they've been waiting --

         10                 MR. SILBERMAN: For a subdivide.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Not at Landmarks.

         12                 Let's do this, and I have to make an

         13  announcement in the interest of housekeeping,

         14  because we're only supposed to have this room til

         15  1:00 and we still have other items on the agenda we

         16  haven't started hearings on.

         17                 So, for people who are here to

         18  testify for the Planning, Dispositions and

         19  Concessions Subcommittee, you can -- there are seats

         20  in the Chambers, right through this door.

         21                 What I think is, there are questions

         22  that a few of the Committee members have regarding

         23  garage applications, permits, timing, what I would

         24  ask of my colleagues is if we could ask the

         25  Landmarks Commission to respond to us in writing

                                                            92

          1  LANDMARKS, PUBLIC SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2  before the end of today about applications that are

          3  still pending in regards to the garage, and clear up

          4  any other questions Council Member Comrie had in

          5  terms of timing; is that okay with my colleagues?

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Yes, Chair.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Okay, great.

          8                 MR. SILBERMAN: I would be happy to do

          9  that.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Okay, great.

         11  Thank you very much. And we're going to close this

         12  hearing.

         13                 We're going to -- I'm sorry, Council

         14  Member Avella.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: Thank you.

         16  First of all, I want to thank this Committee for

         17  taking so much time on this item, and I appreciate

         18  the attention of my colleagues. I just want to make

         19  one comment, because it has been brought to my

         20  attention about the petition that was submitted by

         21  the Mosleys. To my knowledge, most, if not all, of

         22  the signatures that are on this petition are from

         23  residents outside the historic district. And it says

         24  "My opinion on this matter was never solicited by

         25  the Douglaston Littleneck Historical Society or any
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          2  other group, none of these organizations speak for

          3  me." Well, why would any of those groups reach out

          4  to people that weren't in the historic district? So,

          5  the petition, I mean, I think you've got to take it

          6  in that light, is really meaningless. These are

          7  people who would never be contacted, who are not in

          8  the historic district. And that's just the one

          9  comment I would make, other than the fact that some

         10  of the arguments that the Mosleys made any property

         11  owner could make about having landmarked

         12  jurisdiction.

         13                 The fact of the matter was that this

         14  property was included for 14 years in this battle

         15  with the community, with the Landmarks to get this

         16  designated. They bought it in the middle, I can

         17  understand that. They did have the opportunity to

         18  attend some of the public hearings. The testimony

         19  was taken into account. It was still approved by

         20  this Council. They went to court. They in effect got

         21  a judge to reverse it because, in my opinion, I'm

         22  not an attorney, but in my opinion, on a

         23  technicality, that the Landmarks Preservation

         24  Commission report didn't accurately report the

         25  condition of the house, when the house was built. It
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          2  basically referred it back to Landmarks Preservation

          3  Commission. If you want to go ahead, you've just got

          4  to redo the entire process. That's what Landmarks

          5  did. You could argue whether or not they did it

          6  immediately or not, in the Landmarks timeframe they

          7  did it as quickly as they could.

          8                 They went back, there's been a whole

          9  series of hearings. The community, the community

         10  board and the elected officials, including myself,

         11  would like this property to be included. To take it

         12  out splits up the Historic District. It's not a

         13  situation where, like if we were doing a zoning

         14  application it's one property at the end where you

         15  could just change the line. This would split up

         16  maybe one-third of the district, I don't know the

         17  exact number, from the rest of the district. That

         18  destroys the context of an historic district. In

         19  this case it should be approved, and I would

         20  appreciate my colleagues' support.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you very

         22  much. And your point about the petitions is well

         23  taken.

         24                 I wanted to open the hearing on the

         25  Jackie Robinson Play Center and the Jackie Robinson
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          2  Play Center, items 473 and 474. These are landmarks

          3  in Council Member Jackson's district. It's the

          4  interior and exterior of the Jackie Robinson Play

          5  Center Bath House, which is located on West 145th to

          6  West 155th Streets, and invite Diane Jackier back to

          7  testify about these items.

          8                 Look at that, Council Member

          9  Martinez's daughter attends the Beacon High School.

         10  The first item that was on the agenda. We heard it

         11  was an excellent school.

         12                 Council Member Jackier. I'm sorry.

         13  That would be a problem because she's a constituent

         14  of mine. That would put me out of a job.

         15                 MS. JACKIER: Sorry. I'm here today to

         16  testify on the Commission's designation of the

         17  interior and exterior of the Jackie Robinson Play

         18  Center in Manhattan.

         19                 On January 30th, 2007, the Landmarks

         20  Commission held a public hearing on the proposed

         21  designation. Twelve people spoke in favor, including

         22  Parks Commissioner Adrian Benepe, and

         23  representatives of Manhattan Borough President Scott

         24  Stringer, the Municipal Arts Society, the Historic

         25  Districts Council, the Society for the Architecture
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          2  of the City, the Preservation League of Staten

          3  Island, and the New York Landmarks Conservancy.

          4                 The Commission also received letters

          5  in support from Council Member Robert Jackson and

          6  Community Board 10. Several speakers also expressed

          7  support for the larger designation effort of all the

          8  WPA era pools.

          9                 The Commission held previous public

         10  hearings on the play center on April 3rd, 1990 and

         11  September 11th, 1990.

         12                 On April 10th, 2007, the Commission

         13  designated the Jackie Robinson Play Center an

         14  interior and exterior landmark. The play center is

         15  one of a group of 11 immense outdoor swimming pools

         16  opened in the summer of 1936 in a series of grand

         17  ceremonies presided over by Mayor Fiorello LaGuardia

         18  and Parks Commissioner Robert Moses.

         19                 All of the pools were constructed

         20  largely with funding provided by the Works Progress

         21  Administration, one of many New Deal agencies

         22  created in the 1930s to address the Great

         23  Depression.

         24                 Designed to accommodate a total of

         25  49,000 users, simultaneously at locations scattered
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          2  throughout New York City's five boroughs, the new

          3  pool complexes quickly gain recognition at being

          4  among the most remarkable public facilities

          5  constructed in the country. The pools were completed

          6  just two and a half years after the LaGuardia

          7  Administration took office, and all but one survives

          8  relatively intact today.

          9                 While each of the 1936 swimming pool

         10  complexes is especially notable for its distinctive

         11  and unique design, the 11 facilities shared many of

         12  the same basic components. The complexes generally

         13  employ low-cost building materials, principally

         14  brick and cast-concrete and often utilized the

         15  streamlined and curvilinear forms of the popular

         16  1930s' Art Moderne style. Sited in existing older

         17  parks or built on other City-owned land, the grounds

         18  surrounding the pool complexes were executed on a

         19  similarly grand scale, and included additional

         20  recreation areas, connecting pathway systems and

         21  comfort stations. The team of designers, landscape

         22  architects and engineers assembled to execute the

         23  new pool complexes was comprised largely of staff

         24  members and consultants who had earlier worked for

         25  Moses at other governmental agencies, including
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          2  architect Aymar Embury II, landscape architects

          3  Gilmore D. Clarke and Allyn R. Jennings, and civil

          4  engineers W. Earle Andrews and William H. Latham.

          5                 The Jackie Robinson Play Center was

          6  the only one of the WPA-era pools sited in a

          7  predominantly minority neighborhood. Formally opened

          8  on August 8th, 1936, the Play Center was built on a

          9  narrow hillside site acquired by the City of New

         10  York and developed as Colonial Park soon after the

         11  turn of the 20th century. The uniquely monumental

         12  two-story design of the Center's bath house is an

         13  ingenious response to the topography of the park. A

         14  rocky cliff drops off sharply from Edgecombe Avenue

         15  to the west, and the terrain then continues in a

         16  gentler downward slope to level ground along

         17  Bradhurst Avenue to the east. The unusual dimensions

         18  of the swimming pool, 82 by 236 feet, and the oddly

         19  shaped diving pool are accommodations to the

         20  narrowness of the site and the presence of the stone

         21  cliffs.

         22                 The Commission urges you to affirm

         23  the designations.

         24                 Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: And when was the
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          2  site named in honor of Jackie Robinson?

          3                 MS. JACKIER: I can doublecheck that

          4  for you. I had wanted to include that for you in my

          5  testimony.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: I think actually

          7  1978. Under a local law introduced by Council Member

          8  Fred Samuel, and signed by Mayor Ed Koch.

          9                 MS. JACKIER: It was originally

         10  Colonial Park, right.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Okay.

         12                 Council Member Arroyo.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER DEL CARMEN ARROYO: I

         14  don't know if I'm looking at the right document.

         15  We're discussing the Play Center at this point?

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Correct.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER DEL CARMEN ARROYO: Is

         18  it the whole park? What are we landmarking here?

         19  There are pictures of all kinds of -- it's an

         20  incredible place. What exactly is it that we're

         21  landmarking?

         22                 MS. JACKIER: It's not the whole park.

         23  There should be a map. It's the interior and the

         24  exterior of the map. So, there are some buildings

         25  that are included for the interiors, you know, the
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          2  bath houses that have just these incredible 1930s,

          3  you know, interior spaces that are included. So,

          4  it's --

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER DEL CARMEN ARROYO:

          6  Okay. But I'm looking at a picture of, it looks like

          7  a park with a bunch of trees. What on here?

          8                 MS. JACKIER: I don't have the

          9  boundary descriptions in front of me, but it is

         10  written down to specify what is exactly included.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: It's your

         12  last page. From 145 to 155th.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER DEL CARMEN ARROYO: So

         14  the whole park. That's my question.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Does it include

         16  the children's playgrounds, the active recreation

         17  and sports fields, the comfort station?

         18                 MS. JACKIER: Yes. There are two

         19  reports here. One is for the interior and one is for

         20  the exterior. So, the exterior includes the bath

         21  house, swimming pool, former diving pool, the

         22  bandshell, dance floor, terrace and extension

         23  between West 148th and West 155th. The retaining

         24  walls, fencing, stairways, linking pathways,

         25  playground, former wading pool and comfort station.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: So you should

          3  have two reports.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER DEL CARMEN ARROYO: We

          5  do.

          6                 MS. JACKIER: And then interior

          7  includes the vaulted entry foyer and the two

          8  staircases leading to the second floor locker rooms.

          9  The fixtures and interior components of these

         10  spaces, including wall surfaces, floor surfaces,

         11  ceiling surfaces, floors, railings, ticket booths,

         12  signage and metal grills.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER DEL CARMEN ARROYO:

         14  Okay, thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Any other

         16  questions?

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: No. I was

         18  just showing the pictures. It's a very nice site.

         19  I've seen it. I go there. It's in Manhattan.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Does your

         21  daughter swim there?

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Last summer

         23  she did.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you very

         25  much. Seeing nobody else here to testify on this
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          2  item, this hearing is closed. And we're going to

          3  open the hearing in the last item on the agenda, the

          4  Sea View Hospital amendment, which is in Council

          5  Member Oddo's district on Staten Island. An

          6  application by the Health and Hospitals Corporation

          7  regarding the nurses residents there.

          8                 And here to testify is Angelo Mocia.

          9                 MR. MOCIA: Good afternoon. My name is

         10  Angelo Mocia. I'm the Executive Director of the Sea

         11  View Hospital Rehabilitation Center in Harlem which

         12  is part of the New York City Health and Hospitals

         13  Corporation.

         14                 I am here this afternoon seeking the

         15  Council's approval of a modification to a prior

         16  resolution adopted by the Council in 2005, which

         17  approved the execution of a lease of a partial, of

         18  approximately 3.6 acres and a 99,000 square foot

         19  nurses' residence on the campus of Sea View

         20  Hospital, to the Metropolitan Council on Jewish

         21  Poverty and the Archer Companies, for the

         22  development of affordable senior housing, following

         23  a request for qualifications issued by HHC and the

         24  New York City Department of Housing Preservation and

         25  Development.
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          2                 Pursuant to the prior resolution, Met

          3  Council Archer was to rehabilitate the nurses'

          4  residence into approximately 100 units of senior

          5  housing. It was subsequently determined that due to

          6  various Land Use regulations, including open space

          7  requirements that apply to a portion of Staten

          8  Island that Sea View is located, the parcel of land

          9  to be rented for the proposed project must be larger

         10  than had been previously authorized.

         11                 Accordingly, the premises to be

         12  rented will be increased to approximately 286,000

         13  square feet, and will include not only the

         14  dilapidated nurses' residence building, but also the

         15  currently inhabitable cottage located nearby.

         16                 The tenants shall redeploy the

         17  nurses' residence into approximately 106 units of

         18  housing which it is anticipated 98 units will be

         19  constructed in the nurses residents and eight in the

         20  cottage.

         21                 Approximately 40 percent of the

         22  nurses' residents and 100 percent of the cottage

         23  will be low-income housing units.

         24                 The City has allocated $8 million for

         25  this project, including appropriations from the
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          2  Office of the Mayor and the City Council. Thank you

          3  for consideration of this request. I would be happy

          4  to answer any questions.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Council Member

          6  Oddo, would you like to?

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Please.

          8                 When this hearing started fourteen

          9  and a half hours ago, Council Member Brewer

         10  mentioned with respect to the Beacon High School how

         11  long it's taken for that project to --

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: My daughter

         13  goes there.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: I heard that. I

         15  heard that. I heard she swims too. I can't begin to

         16  tell you -- well, actually I'm preaching to the

         17  choir, because you folks know that nothing good in

         18  government happens by accident. And there is the

         19  room downstairs called "The Chapel," which is no

         20  longer the Chapel, we should really rename it the

         21  nurses' residence project room, because we had

         22  countless meetings in that room.

         23                 This is a wonderful project. It

         24  provides 104 units of senior housing, half of which

         25  is at 60 percent of AMI. So, it reaches a spectrum
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          2  of Staten Islanders. It also takes historic landmark

          3  buildings on the campus of Sea View and brings them

          4  back to life and diversifies the Sea View Campus,

          5  and at the very end of this process, we hit the last

          6  bump, which was trying to extract a fairer rent for

          7  Angelo and the good folks at Sea View for HHC. So,

          8  we had one last pow wow up at 250 Broadway,

          9  threatened to stop the project on a dime, in order

         10  to get HHC some more money in the 18th year, and we

         11  were able to do that.

         12                 Let me just thank a few people, and I

         13  know it's a long hearing. Just the good people at

         14  HPD, Rachel Fee, who is the Project Manager, my

         15  friend Holly Light, John Garrety, Tim O'Hanlon,

         16  Jeremy Berman, Ginny Pelecastro, Angelo and Jim

         17  Roberts at Sea View, who have been wonderful on

         18  this. I even will thank Laray Brown from HHC, who

         19  was helpful. The folks at Met Council and Archer,

         20  for being patient and to other people.

         21                 This project originally had $2

         22  million and they wanted to build a different type of

         23  project and I said, no, I want a project that's even

         24  more of a split in terms of income. And the

         25  Administration stepped up. Haeda Mihaltses was
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          2  fantastic. We went from 2 million all the way up to

          3  8 million to make this a reality.

          4                 And last, but not least, there is a

          5  guy who is no longer affiliated with Sea View. He's

          6  retired, he's now the Borough Historian, Tom Mateo,

          7  whose vision it was to bring senior housing onto

          8  this campus. Although this is not exactly the

          9  project he did envision, he gave life to it. And

         10  this is a long time in coming and we're grateful for

         11  all the hard work that was put into it.

         12                 And I'll close with this: For too

         13  long Staten Island seniors either move south, to

         14  Philadelphia or Pennsylvania, or New Jersey or they

         15  move north to meet their maker, waiting on senior

         16  housing in Staten Island, and today we take a small

         17  step in the right direction to give them some of

         18  those units.

         19                 Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Congratulations.

         21  I know you spent a lot of time and a lot of hours

         22  working on this.

         23                 So, with that, I would close this

         24  hearing, and I don't know if I mentioned earlier,

         25  we're also laying over the Neoponsit Health Center,
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          2  and ask the Counsel to call the roll.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Is this a

          4  lease to buy, Jimmy?

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: It's long-term.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Any more

          8  questions?

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: I won't be

         10  around by then, but if there's a problem in the 98th

         11  year --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: You won't have

         13  moved south.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: I'm sure

         15  Miguel's daughter, who will be Mayor at the time,

         16  will take care of it.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: With that, I

         18  would like to ask the Council to call the roll on

         19  all items, except for the amendment to the

         20  Douglaston Hill Historic District and the other

         21  items that are being laid over, and I recommend a

         22  favorable vote.

         23                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Chair Lappin.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Aye.

         25                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member
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          2  Comrie.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Aye.

          4                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

          5  Arroyo.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER DEL CARMEN ARROYO:

          7  Aye.

          8                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

          9  Martinez.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: For Jimmy's

         11  seniors in Staten Island aye, and my daughter.

         12                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         13  Mendez.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: Aye.

         15                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         16  Oddo.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Yes.

         18                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: By a vote of

         19  six in the affirmative -- Council Member Barron.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Did you all

         21  mention something about Miguel's daughter is

         22  involved in this? Because I have some concerns. Aye

         23  on all. Wait, we're not voting on Douglaston? Aye on

         24  all.

         25                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: By a vote of
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          2  seven in the affirmative, none in the negative, no

          3  abstentions, LU 473, 474, 478, and 20075369 SCM are

          4  approved and go to the full Land Use Committee.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: We will hold the

          6  vote open for 15 minutes, after which time the

          7  meeting will be adjourned.

          8                 (Hearing concluded at 1:25 p.m.)
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